ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

February 2, 2010
8:07 a.m

Chair
Vice Chair

Bob Lynn,
Paul Seat on,
Carl Gatto
Crai g Johnson
Peggy W/ son
Max Gruenberg
Pet e Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 38
Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to and increasing the nunber of nmenbers of the house of

representatives to forty-eight and the nunber of nenbers of the
senate to twenty-four.
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 38
SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM | NCREASE NUMBER OF LEQ SLATORS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) P. W LSON
01/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 10 (H STA, JUD, FIN
02/ 02/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER
GORDON HARRI SON
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself in support
of HIR 38.
PAVELA VARNI, Executive Director

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2010



Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HIR 38.

JI M BALDW N, Attorney

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself in support
of HIR 38.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07:11 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Seaton, WIson,
Pet er sen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Gatto, Johnson, and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 38- CONST. AM | NCREASE NUMBER COF LEGQ SLATORS

8:07:45 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO 38, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to and increasing
t he nunber of nenbers of the house of representatives to forty-
ei ght and the nunber of nenbers of the senate to twenty-four

8. 08: 38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON presented HIR 38 as prinme sponsor. She

paraphrased the sponsor statenent, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

HIR 38 will put a constitutional amendnent before the
voters in the 2010 general election that would
increase the size of t he | egislature to 48

representatives and 24 senators. Upon voter approval
the measure would apply to the 2012 determ nation of
new boundary's for the election district.

In the first 50 years of statehood, Al aska has not
changed the 20 senator, 40 representative size of its
| egi slative body, the smallest bicaneral |egislature
in the nation. In this time span, the popul ation of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2010



the state has nore than tripl ed. Most significantly,
the population increase is disproportionate, strongly
favoring large wurban areas over rural and snal
comunity areas. The task then of applying the
proscriptions of Article A/ above, has
correspondi ngly becone nore difficult and contentious.
Except for the 1960 reapportionnment, all subsequent
reapportionnments have faced successf ul | egal
chal l enges, requiring boundary adjustnments and on
several occasions, a court constructed pl an.

Federal protections of the U'S. Voter R ghts Act of
1965 for large mnority concentrations further
conplicate Al aska's reapportionnment process. | ndeed

they can act to counter the Section 6 requirenents.
Rural election district distortions are evident in the
current plan. There is a probability that the new
popul ation distribution of the 2010 census cannot
reconcile Section 6 and the Voter R ghts Act wthout
i ncreasing the size of the |egislature.

Bet ween 1960 and 2006, twenty nine states have changed
the size of their |legislative body. For the nine
states wth snall popul ations simlar to Al aska
(509,000 to 1,429,000), the average size of their
| egi sl ative bodies is 134 nmenbers.

Anot her neasure of the effect of the state's growth
and conplexity on the work of the legislature is its
budget responsibilities. Legi sl ative expenditures for
government prograns and projects has risen from a
figure of $104 million in FY 61 to somewhere in the
nei ghborhood of $7 billion currently. This is an
i ncrease from $2700 per capita in 1961 nom nal dollars
to $10, 000 per capita today.

For these reasons, putting a proposal to increase the
size of the legislature before the voters is tinely
and nerited.

8:14: 07 AM

CHAI R LYNN suggested that there may not be room in the present
capitol to house additional |egislators.

8:14: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said Panela Varni would speak to that
i ssue.

8:14:56 AM

CHAIR LYNN observed that having nore |legislators across the
state would nean districts would be smaller, which may help
reduce the cost of canpaigning.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON responded that she does not know if
that woul d decrease the cost of canpaigning, but she confirned
that each |egislator would have fewer constituents than he/she
has now. She said her district includes: Wangell, Petersburg
Sitka, Pelican, Efin Cove, Port Alexander, Kupreanof, and
Bar anof WArm Springs. She said one place she has only travel ed
to once at a cost of $1,000. She stated her belief that naking
a district larger is not fair to constituents or their
Representati ve.

8:17: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that he has the smallest district
in the state. He asked how el ectroni c comruni cati on has changed
Representative P. Wl son's canpai gning style.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said she attenpts to tel ephone all her
constituents who send e-mails. She renmarked that the bigger the
district gets the harder that is to do. She said she e-mails a
newsl etter and uses radio and newspaper to inpart information
t hrough "Peggy's Corner of the House." She said she does not
use the telephone or letter to contact her constituents very
of t en.

8.18: 57 AM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, in response to a question from

Representative Seaton, said the hope for HIR 38 is that the
areas now represented would not |ose representation, but the

areas that grow would gain nore representation. In response to
a followup question from Representative Seaton, she said sone
areas vary in their population shifts. It will be up to the

redistricting conmmttee to figure out [ where additional
| egi sl ators woul d be placed], not up to the |egislature.

8:21:14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said when he began as a legislator, there
were 16,000 constituents, and now there are 24, 000; however, he

said he has not been conprom sed by the grow h. He said he
thinks the public would not support the addition of nore
| egi sl ators. He suggested the reason the bill sponsor is
proposing HIR 38 is "because Southeast is going to ... have

fewer Representatives."”

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON responded that her district is not the

only one that is "losing nenbers"; all the rural areas and
villages are seeing shifts in population. She asked
Representative Gatto to imagi ne how his constituents would fee
if, like in rural Alaska, their representation disappeared with

no repl acenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "All we're doing is taking the sane

acreage and drawing squigglier lines in different directions;
but ... every Representative has essentially the sane nunber of
constituents, whether we go to 46 or 48 or what." He said
Alaska is a small state wth 60 Representatives serving

approxi mately 700,000 people. Another state m ght have over 100
Representatives, but those 100-plus are serving 10-20 mllion

In conparison, it is possible that Al aska has too nany
Represent ati ves.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked Representative Gatto again how he
t hi nks rural Al askans would feel to have | ess representation.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO replied that he does not know how people
are feeling in other states that are | osing Representatives. He
i ndi cated that people adjust, and he said he is not certain that
"adjusting up is a benefit."

REPRESENTATI VE  P. WLSON noted that it iIs easier for
Representative Gatto to appear before all his constituents,
because he does not have to travel as far to do so. She said
she cannot do that, and she asked himto take into consideration
- as a matter of fairness - the ability of constituents to neet
face to face with their Representatives.

8:26: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that of the states that have
changed [representation], 19 have reduced their nunbers and 12

have increased their nunbers. He asked the bill sponsor if she
has done any research behind the changes ot her states have nade.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said sone states have changed
representation to match the growh of their population. She
said one consideration is whether or not the districting |ayout
facilitates t he Representative's visitation of hi s/ her
constituents. Alaska is so bhig, and the Constitution of the
State of Alaska requires the state to have "soci 0- econoni ¢
groups of like mnd and manner." She said if the legislature
does not chose to increase its menbership, the court system may
step in and nandate that that be done.

8:28: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d when he served 20 years ago, urban
districts each had two Representatives, while the rura
districts had just one. From a constituent and |egislative
point of view, having dual Representatives was a trenendous
advant age. In the 1960s, the top 16 people were elected at
| arge from Anchorage. In the 1970s, the city was quartered, and
each of the four districts had four Representatives. In the
1980s, those four districts were divided in half, and each
district had two Representatives. Representative G uenberg said
the constitution was amended after that to provide for a

redi stricting board. He directed attention to page 1, line 12
of the bill, which he said is the relevant section related to
single nmenmber districts. He recollected that before that, the

size of the district was established by | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that Representative P. WI son
consider either going back to dual nmenber districts or to
provide "that it shall be established by law" He said the
latter would allow dual -nenber or four-nenber districts, or a
conbi nation thereof throughout the state. He related that the
advantage of a dual nmenber district is, for exanple, that one
Representative can concentrate on budget issues, while the other
wor ks on ot her issues. He indicated that the change from that
system may have been because of a desire to make each district
smal | er; however, he stated that he is not sure that it nakes
much difference whether a |egislator represents 16, 000-17,000 or
twce that nunber. He said people mght |ike having two
Representatives and two Senators in larger comunity boundari es.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON deferred to M. Harrison

8:33: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked Representative P. Wlson if she has
taken advantage of the redistricting conputer progranms that are
avai | abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON deferred again to M. Harrison

8:33:47 AM

GORDON HARRISON told the commttee that he was the forner
executive director of the Alaska Redistricting Board. In

response to Representative Johnson's prior question, he said the
software for the 2010 redistricting cycle has not been purchased

by the state; it will not be ready for another year. However,
he noted that information from the Departnment of Labor and
VWor kforce Devel opnent shows what wll happen to some of the

rural districts.

8:34:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON related that the National Council of
State Legislatures (NCSL) has cone up wth conputer nodels
related to redistricting that are perhaps not official.

MR. GORDON confirmed that [NCSL] has "dummy” nunbers.
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON remarked that it is sinple to determ ne
"what wll happen to a legislative district if you plug in
nunbers. "

MR, GORDON interjected, "If you have all the nunbers running."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said, "You' re making the sane assessnents
now, so you have dummy nunbers."”

MR. GORDON responded yes, but noted that the previously
menti oned software costs approximtely $10,000, and "nobody's
purchased it yet."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON reiterated that NCSL would run a node
for the state.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she would check into it.

8:36: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2010



MR. HARRISON continued with his testinony. He stated his

ent husiastic support of HIR  38. He said he thinks
Representative P. WIlson's assessnent of the situation is
correct. He stated that redistricting without [HIR 38] would
create huge rural districts - even larger than they are

presently. He nentioned "popul ati on nunbers” and indicated that
the Departnment of Labor and Wrk Force Devel opnent has reported
and estimated [state] popul ation of 700,000, which he said would
produce a district of approximtely 17,500 people. However, he

said the rural districts are "way off of that." M. Harrison
proceeded to give exanples of various districts and how far
short of that nunber they fall, including: Ket chi kan, 3, 000-

4,000 short; the North Slope, about 3,000 short; Kodiak, 4,000
short; and Bristol Bay, 3,000 short.

MR. HARRISON stated that the only way to nake up for the
shortage in one district is by "cannibalizing your neighbors.™
He predicted that District 5 in Southeast Al aska would be
canni balized to the point of its disappearance.. He predicted
other districts in the state that woul d di sappear as a result of
this canni bali zati on. M. Harrison said he thinks that, as the

bill sponsor has said, the public policy issue at hand is
effective representation in districts. Sonme districts will be
so big, he predicted, that its constituents wll never neet
their Representative, and legislators wll find conpeting
interests within one district, he said. Ef f ecti ve canpai gni ng
will be inpossible, since it will be too expensive to travel.

He characterized the boundaries of Senate District C as
"preposterous,” noting that it reaches from Metlakatla up to the
Arctic.

MR. HARRI SON concl uded that under HIR 38, district size would be
reduced from 17,500 to approximately 14,500, and as a
consequence, nost of the rural districts would be able to
mai ntai n thensel ves. He opined that the proposed |egislation
woul d not fundanentally inpact the nature of the legislative
process nor would it disturb the distribution of power between
urban and rural areas.

MR. HARRI SON tol d Representative Guenberg that the problemwth
mul ti pl e-nmenber districts is that the districts would have to be
twce as big if they have two nmenbers, which would only conpound
t he problem

8:41:44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2010



MR. HARRISON, in response to Representative Petersen, said he
supports the sponsor's proposal to have 48 Representatives and
24 Senators, but said he would support even higher nunbers.

8:42: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON added that the proposed nunbers would
keep the rural areas fromlosing [any nore representation].

8:43: 00 AM

MR. HARRISON, in response to Representative Gatto, explained
that when he said sone districts may not exist, he did not nean
that people would be left without a district. Instead, he said,
since the Anchorage area is expanding so rapidly, existing
representation would be directed there, which would change the
boundaries of districts in other parts of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned why the proposed l|legislation is
not requesting a larger increase of Representatives and Senators
if the bill sponsor believes that an increase would be
benefi ci al .

MR. HARRI SON answered that for one thing, greater nunbers than
the resolution proposes would create the need to build a new

capitol. He said he thinks the resolution proposes an
i ncrenental change that would inprove denocratic representation
in the state for many of its residents. He said he does not
think that anybody wants to make any radical changes in the
| egi sl ative process. He said the cost of canmpaigning in the
current districts is prohibitive. He opined that Kkeeping

districts to a manageable size is a legitimate public policy.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he does not think references to
canpaigning should "have a play in this.” He said he is
considering only how the proposed change would affect the
publi c. He said he thinks the public would question what
happened in 2010 that suddenly necessitated the need for HJR 38.
He stated, "I'm not sure this is the kind of thing that they
woul d | ook at favorably."

MR. HARRI SON answered that that may depend on where the person
lives. For exanple, soneone |living in Bethel, Barrow, or
DlIlingham my see the w sdom of HIR 38, while perhaps those
living in the valley would not.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the increase in legislators would
necessitate the increase in neeting space and nodification of
the capitol, which would cost a consi derabl e anobunt of noney.

MR. HARRI SON suggested one solution may be to "invite the
governor into sone nice spacious quarters in the State Ofice
Building®" and turn the third floor currently occupied by the
governor into |egislative office space.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON reiterated that the subject of finance
coul d be addressed by Panel a Varni .

8:49:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks what M. Harrison is
saying relates to tying the |egislature's hands through inposing
a 90-day session. He said if there were a few nore legislators
then there would be nore people to do the work in the 90 days
and the job would be done better. He asked M. Harrison if that
is what he is saying.

MR. HARRI SON responded that that is not what he is saying, but
he agrees with it. He said he thinks the Senate would benefit
from having at | east four nore nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that M. Harrison had witten a
maj or treatise on the Constitution of the State of Al aska. He
said Al aska's population, budget, and problens are bigger and
nore conplicated than they were when the state was young, which
demands that the |legislature consider ways to function as
effectively as possible. He asked if M. Harrison concurs.

MR. HARRI SON answered that that is part of his thinking but is
not the main inpetus for HIR 38. The main inpetus for the
proposed | egislation, he opined, is the fact that some districts
are so large now that they are not fairly and effectively
repr esent ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is trying to enphasize the
ot her issues that would be benefitted from HIR 38, even in urban
ar eas.

MR. HARRISON said wurban districts would benefit from the
proposed resolution, as well, because "even their districts
woul d be nore manageabl e.”

8:53:44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE  P. W LSON, in response to Representative
Gruenberg, confirmed that one of the reasons she is proposing 24
Senators and 48 Representatives, is that the present capitol
woul d accommodate that many additional |egislators. She noted
that HIR 38 is a conpanion bill to [SIR 21].

8:54: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to three sets of charts
in the commttee packet [showi ng population trends for election
districts in 2010], and he noted that the average popul ation of
40 districts is listed as 15,673.

MR. HARRI SON interjected, "That was the ideal district 10 years
ago."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to a colum on one of
the charts showing a difference from the average of 15,735. He
offered his understanding that that nunber is "less the 100 off
of the ideal 2010."

MR. HARRI SON responded, "I think that the ideal population under
this legislation would be 14, 424."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that there are three charts. He
continued as foll ows:

One is 22 Senators, 44 election districts. The ot her

one is ... 46 election districts, where it says, "46
Eds" over at the far -- and then ... the other one's
| abeled "48 leg," which would be 24 Senators and 48
menbers. So, I"'mtrying to figure out if we had an

i deal population of 15,673, and with 22 Senators and
44 House election districts, we would have 15, 735,
which is the closest nunber to what we had in 2010

Can ... you explain to me why we wouldn't be | ooking
at that nunber? | nmean, are we just talking about
well maybe in the future we'll have popul ati on changes

and we want to take care of nore, or...?
MR HARRI SON said he has not seen the table to which
Representative Seaton referred - the one that analyzes four
addi ti onal House districts. He continued:

| think that you have to conpare that nunber with the
popul ation that we expect in these districts.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2010



Ketchikan looks like it's having a population right
now around 13,500, so it's still off 1,500 people.
: I"ve only looked at analysis that shows eight
addi tional House nenbers and how that changes the
anticipated inpact from redistricting with an ideal

popul ation of 15, 700. ... | think that it probably
woul dn't save some of the rural districts, and there
woul d be still subst anti al i ncrease in their

geogr aphy. And | think if you're going to do four,
you mght as well do eight, because | don't think it's
that big a difference in ternms of the functioning of
the legislature or the space requirenments, and | think
that it helps ... keep the status quo in the rura
areas, in ternms of the geography of the districts.

8:58: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is trying to understand that
underlying structure of the bill. He continued as foll ows:

So, the nunbers, at 48 House districts, is taken not
to maintain the sane legislator to constituent [ratio]
that we had in our previous redistricting, but to
maintain the smallest ... House districts that they
could stay in place without redrawi ng those districts.
But all of the other districts that are above that
we'd be carving sonething out of those and they would
be. ..

MR HARRI SON said nore districts would be nmde. He said "the
excess" would "cone into another district."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concluded that there is no way, under HIR
38, to maintain the current structure of districts, the smallest
districts could be nmaintained while all the others surrounding
them could be redistricted. He asked if that is the intent of
choosi ng the nunber 48.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON answered yes. She noted, "At every
single [US.] Census since we started, there's been a shift."

Keeping the nunber of legislators as is wll not prevent
districts from changi ng. She said her efforts are to ensure
fairness to constituents first and forenost, but also to ensure
the systemis fair to legislators. She noted that during her

first two years as a legislator, her constituents ranged from
Wangel |, Petersburg, and Sitka, which had [populations in each
area] ranging from 2,000-8,000. Wen redistricting took place

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2010



that district was expanded in order to keep the right nunber of
constituents in it, which nmeant a greater expanse, and
[ popul ations in each areal] ranging from 89 people to 8,500
peopl e. She indicated that it is "pushing it pretty thin" to
cal | this district an i nt egrated soci 0- economi ¢ ar ea.
Representative P. WIson said in the year before l|ast she
traveled as a legislator over 90 tines, nostly in Southeast
Al aska to see her constituents, and she said that does not even

include charter flights or ferry trips. She said Senator
Kookesh's district is the biggest in the U S. and contains nore
than half the school districts in Al aska. Those schoo

districts have trenendous econonic difference.
9: 04: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested that the |egislature would be
addressing the sane predicanent 10 years from now if current
trends continue with mgration fromrural to urban areas.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON responded that in the |ast 50 years,
Al aska's population has tripled in size. She said, "I hope we
woul d have that problem that woul d be wonderful."

9:05:41 AM

PAMELA VARNI, Executive Director, Legislative Affairs Agency,
directed attention to the fiscal note in the commttee packet,
dated 1/29/2010. She said funding would be requested in the
year 2013 for a total of $6, 140, 000. Thereafter, the funding
requested would be $4,470,000. That would enconpass the salary
and per diem for 12 additional |egislators and would allow for
34 staff to legislators, additional support staff, an attorney,
two legislative information officers, a "help desk"™ technician,
and one cust odi an. Funding woul d al so include the cost to nove
11 legislators and their famlies and to relocate the additional
34 staff. Ms. Varni said there would need to be allowance
accounts for the Senators and Representatives, hook-up fees for
conputers, telephones, and facsimle machines, and either an
increase in current office space or the establishnent of new
offices in legislators' districts. Furthernore, conputers,
printers, and facsimle nmachines would need to be purchased.
She said she thinks the anmount estimated for equipnent and
reconstruction of existing facilities is conservative. She said
if a decision was nmade to construct a new building or build an
addition to the capitol, the $1.5 mllion dollars would have to
be increased through a capital appropriation. M. Varni offered
to answer questions fromthe commttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2010



9:09:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the committee needs to have a
fiscal note from the Division of Elections reflecting the cost
of putting a constitutional amendnment on the ballot.

9:09: 49 AM

M5. VARNI, in response to question from Representative Johnson

said it would require some creativity to fit an additional eight
offices into the existing space of the capitol. She agreed with
M. Harrison that it would be nice to have the use of the third
fl oor. She nentioned that Representative Munoz is working on a
bill to allow building a state office building along the
wat erfront.

CHAIR LYNN cormmented that if his office was nade any smaller, he
woul d have to stand up

9:11: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his recollection that noving the
governor from the third floor of the capitol had been
unsuccessfully attenpted in the past.

9:11: 36 AM

M5. VARNI responded that it is witten in statute the governor
has space in the capitol; therefore, it would be the governor's
choi ce whether or not to nove. She said that fornmer Governor
Frank Mirkowski had |ooked at noving over to the State Ofice
Bui | di ng.

9:12: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Varni if she is in favor of a new
capi tol buil ding.

M5. VARNI replied that it is the will of the legislature and the
people to pass HIR 38, and then, if it was decided that
addi ti onal space was necessary, the people mght want to have
something built that makes them proud. She noted that the
current capitol is the only one in the nation not built
originally as a capitol building.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he supports a new capitol being
built in the Matanuska/Susitna area where a mgjority of Al askans
could drive by and see it. He said building a capitol there
woul d support the proposed resol ution.

9:15:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON commented that she has not heard many
peopl e suggest noving the capital of the US. to the center of
the country, which she opined "is about the sane thing." She
said she lived in a state in the past where the capital was in
the hub of the state, and it was nore difficult to access the
| egislators. She said all l|egislators nay not be happy being in
Juneau, but they are much nore accessible and have Iess
di stracti ons.

9:16: 28 AM

M5. VARNI, in response to Representative Petersen, offered her
understanding that the building that Representative Moz is
proposi ng would be in the area referred to as the "sub port."”

M5. VARNI, in response to Representative Seaton, said she has
not seen the aforenentioned spreadsheets. She said the fisca
note was conpil ed based solely upon the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would |like an estimate regarding
space cost related to each of the aforenenti oned spreadsheets.

M5. VARNI said she would conpile that information
9:20: 16 AM

JIM BALDWN, Attorney at Law, stated that he is testifying on
behal f of hinself. He related that |like M. Harrison, he was
involved with the last redistricting of the state, enployed with
the Ofice of the Attorney General and serving as co-counsel to
the plaintiffs in defending the plan in the state court system
M. Baldwin stated that although he heartily agrees with the
testimony of M. Harrison, he supports HIR 38 for reasons a
little bit different from those that have been expressed. He
expl ained that he does not see HIJR 38 so nuch as a nmatter that
woul d favor rural areas of the state, but rather sees it as
havi ng a nore bal anced applicati on.

MR. BALDW N enphasized the inportance of the federal Voting
Rights Act to the state's redistricting process. He opined that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 2, 2010



the state wll probably never "get out from under"” the Act
because the opt-out provisions will not work for Al aska. He
explained, "It seens like every tinme we have a redistricting we
have an objection, and when you have an objection you're in the
m dst and you're not ... getting out." He said he thinks the
proposed |egislation would give the [redistricting] board nore
options for solving the problemwith the Voting Ri ghts Act.

MR. BALDWN related that he is famliar wth the software
prograns to which Representative Johnson referred. He said the
prograns nake the job easier, but can be problematic, because
"the nunbers push you around the nmap," and often there are areas
|l eft out of the equation that nust be addressed. He descri bed
the last redistricting effort in Anchorage as being |ike a tube
of toothpaste: only so nmuch of the population fit in that tube,
and when squeezed, sone of the population ended wup iIn
Representative Gatto's district, while some ended up as part of
the Valdez district. Redi stricting can result in a
Representative representing people from urban and rural areas

he sai d.

9: 24: 24 AM

VR. BALDWN reiterated his previous points. He then
acknow edged that the |egislature nmust consider noney issues and
the cost of canpaigning. He said his experience showed himthat
related litigation was not about political parties, but rather
was about geographic region. He opined, "That's what the battle
is, and that's what this helps alleviate."

9:25: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed di sagreenent with the illustrated
result of M. Baldwin's squeezed tube exanple. He then stated
that the system currently in place has not changed in 50 years,
and he asked M. Baldwn if the permtted deviation in districts
is 10 percent.

MR. BALDWN said there is a permtted deviation that Al aska's
courts have allowed to be expanded in certain circunstances.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said rural districts conprised nostly of
Native Al askans would becone |ess effective under HIR 38,
because they are allowed a 10 percent deviation, and he surm sed
that urban districts would have to absorb that 10 percent
devi ati on. He said that does not appear to be a significant
pr obl em He asked M. Baldwn if he would still support HIR 38

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 2, 2010



if, in addition to changing the nunber of legislators, it also
proposed to nove the capital to a new |ocation. He said he
wants to know if M. Baldwin is here because he does not want to
| ose a district in Southeast Al aska.

MR. BALDWN replied, "I don't have a dog in any of those
fights.” He noted that he does live in Juneau.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he has not found one person who |ives
in Juneau who wants the capital noved. He opined that "the rest
of us" who don't live in Juneau do not share that opinion. He
clarified that he wants to know if M. Baldwin is supporting HIR
38 because he really believes the resolution will help equalize
representation or because he is trying to keep the capital in
Juneau.

9: 28: 36 AM

MR. BALDWN responded that he is testifying in support of HIR 38
because he is extrenely interested in the political process. He
of fered his background, which included working for the state for
27 years, a part of that tinme working with the |legislative |ega

departnment. He said he also worked for a nunber of years in the
governnmental affairs section in the Departnent of Law as a
supervi si ng attorney. He recol | ected t hat t hree

"redistrictings" occurred during his tenure as an enployee of
the state. He said he has been concerned for a nunber of years
regarding the affect of the Voting R ghts Act on Alaska's
process. He said he has becone resolved to the notion that the
state nust learn to live with the Act, and he reiterated that
HIR 38 is a good tool. He stated that the issue of whether or
not to nove the capital is "not a sub rosa thing here with nme."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Baldwin if he would support
having 50 [ Senators] and 100 [ Representatives].

MR. BALDWN answered that he does not know what the right
nunbers would be, but thinks this approach is an authorized way
for solving the problem of increasing the size of the
| egi sl ature.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO recall ed a "doughnut hole" approach in the
past, to which the court objected. He surmised that that
approach was a "very political structure.”

MR. BALDW N said [the "donut hole"] took place in the 1990s.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested that it is always the courts who
redistrict the state.

MR. BALDW N said he does not agree with that. For exanple, the
last tine redistricting was done, the court sent the plan back
to the board, and the board redrew the lines with direction from

the court. He said he thinks the court would be loath to say it
drew the Ilines, although the board may feel the court's
i nfluence.
9:32:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she is shocked that the issue of a
capital nove was broached in conjunction with HIR 38, because
t he proposed | egislation has nothing to do with that issue. She
stated that if the nunber of legislators is not changed, the
issue of lack of representation for Native Alaskans wll

surface. She asked M. Baldwin what his opinion is on the
matter.

9:33: 15 AM

MR. BALDW N responded that the Justice Departnment will look to
see if the state is "sliding backwards." He continued as
fol |l ows:

If you ve established a certain nunber of majority
districts and a certain nunber of influence districts,
the first line that they wll inpose is: Are you
mai ntai ning those kinds of districts? ... So, if you
have the pressure of populations going down in the
areas where our Native popul ations reside, then you're
staring right in the weyes of a retrogression
situation, | think, if the idea is to maintain the
status quo.

MR. BALDWN said if mpjority districts cannot be nmaintained,
then the next best thing is to go to influence districts, which
means enough bl ock voting within a district that Natives may be
able to put forward a candidate that wll be successful. He
continued as foll ows:

So, then, if that's where you're going to have nore
influence districts, then the reason |I'm saying that
it's not just a rural problem that it can be an urban
problem is that: where are you going to bring those
addi ti onal populations in wth those influence

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 2, 2010



districts? And that's where it affects the urban

districts, | think. ... O there could be other
di screet populations that can be brought in, |Ilike
mlitary bases. You know, the possibilities are
endless, and like | said, you march around a map
| ooking for these chunks of population, and if you
have snmaller district sizes, you can, | think, not end
the problem - maybe forestall it for another decade,
maybe two nore decades, maybe 50 years. | don't know,

but | think that when you |ook at those charts that
you were referring to earlier, ask yourself how many
of those jurisdictions operate under the Voting Rights
Act when you consider their rel evance.

9:35: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how many tines since statehood the
state has redistricted without the invol venent of the court.

MR BALDW N answered none since his involvenent in 1980.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON added that research has shown that the
court has been involved in the state's redistricting efforts
every tinme, accept for the first time in 1960.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if there is any anticipation that
addi ng the proposed nunber of legislators will keep the state
out of court.

MR BALDW N answer ed no.
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concurr ed.

MR. BALDWN said he thinks that when the |egislature changed to
the council approach for redistricting over "the old approach,”
it was possibly taking a step toward satisfying nore of the
regional interest. However, he said that w thout changing to
"sonething that's a nmuch greater nunber,” he does not know how
the state wll make all the identifiable socio-economc areas
"satisfied wwth having their own districts."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON questioned how many districts follow ng
the Voting R ghts Act would be affected. He surmised that it
m ght be only three.

MR. BALDW N responded that he does not know without | ooking into
an answer.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 2, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN told Representative Johnson that he
thinks the borders of all the districts would have to be
adj ust ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON cl arified that he wants to know how many
districts that actually fall under the Voting R ghts Act would

be affected. He indicated that Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau
and the Matanuska/ Susitna Valley do not fall under the Act. He
said he wants to know "how many under 48 w Il fall wunder that

ver sus under 407?"
9:40: 35 AM

MR. BALDWN agreed that that is the "starting point" for
judging: "Were are they left under the new plan as opposed to
where they were under the old plan?”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked where he can get information
regardi ng which districts fall under the Voting R ghts Act.

MR. BALDWN responded that "the preclearance" is available from
the Departnment of Law, nost likely in the board files. He
added, "Everybody weighed in on it, and the justice departnent
pre-cleared what happened even in the first go-around of the
pl an, but changes had to be nade as a result of the court.” In
response to a followup question, he offered further information
regarding how to interpret the preclearance information.

9:42:12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked:

Under that, is it the nunber of districts on the
retrograde? In other words, if we expand the nunber
of districts, is [it] the proportion of districts or
is it just the fact that you had three or five that
were mnority districts before - mnority or majority
districts - and you still have three or five, even if
you increase the nunmber of districts? How does that
wor k: is it just strictly the nunber or is it the
proportion?

MR. BALDWN said he does not know wi thout researching an answer.

He said he would imgine there is a lot of precedent wth
redistricting in nmunicipalities that are covered by the Act. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 2, 2010



said he thinks he could get an answer for Representative Seaton
fairly quickly.

9:43: 41 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he is not going to close public testinony. He
said the bottom line is figuring out what 1is best for
constituents. Another concern is how HIR 38 may affect economc
devel opnent . He said he would like to receive nore input from
nore constituents. He thanked Representative P. WIson for

bringing forth HIR 38.

9:45: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he hopes HIR 38 is not treated as a
capital nove bill. He said the bill is not about |osing
representation from Juneau. He said there are sonme snaller
districts that have "passed the test for representation.” He

related that he thought it was interesting to consider the
phil osophy of maintaining the integrity of districts that have
been approved by the courts in the state's previous
redi stricting. He said he would like to hear nore discussion
regardi ng the possible inpact of the nunbers proposed in HIR 38.
9:47:11 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said answers to the questions asked
t oday woul d be forthcom ng.

9:47:46 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HIR 38 was hel d over.

9:48: 31 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:48
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 2, 2010



